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KERRY JOHN PATTEN, C.PA.

2101 N. Willow Ave.

Broken Arrow, OK 74012
Phone Number (918) 250-8838
FAX Number (918) 250-9853

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

The Board of Education
Canadian Valley Technology Center No. 6
Canadian, Oklahoma

Report on the Financial Statements

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Canadian Valley Technology Center No. 6, Canadian County,
Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance .
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk .
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, | express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence I' have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Opinion

.In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Canadian Valley Technology Center as of June 30, 2018, and the respective
changes in its financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Auditing Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. | have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge |
obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. | do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Supplementary Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the basis financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial and other
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the supplementary
information including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, | have also issued my report dated February 8, 2019, on my
consideration of Canadian Valley Technology Center No. 6, Canadian County, Oklahoma’s, internal control over
financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of my audit.

W
‘H /aﬁ /M
Kerry John Patten, C.P.A.

Broken Arrow, OK
February 8, 2019
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County
Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

June 30,2018

Within the management’s discussion and analysis of the Canadian Valley Technology Center,
District No. 6 (the District) annual financial report, the District’s management provides narrative
discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018. The District’s financial performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the
accompanying financial statements following this section.

I. Financial Highlights

e Total net position $50,295,731
e Change in total net position $2,578,578
e Fund balances, governmental funds $20,584,883
e Property valuation of the district for fiscal year ended 2018 is up 3.1 % from the prior year.

A major change occurred from the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No 74 “Financial Reporting of Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans: This statement requires separate presentation of the financial information related
to Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB). The Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma pays
a medical insurance supplement to eligible members who elect to continue their employer provided
health insurance. The supplement payment is between $100 and $105 per month provided the
member has ten years of Oklahoma service prior to retirement.

The District also determined that food services, bookstore services and child care services were
not self-sustaining from user fees and thus would no longer be presented as business-type
proprietary activities. All these services are now carried within the general fund and governmental

activities.
II. Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction of the Canadian Valley”
Technology Center, District No. 6’s basic financial statements. The District’s basic financial
statements comprise three components: 1) district-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

1) District-wide Financial Statements. The district-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The Statement of Net Position represents district-wide information on all of the District’s assets
and liabilities, with the difference between assets and liabilities reported as Net Position. Over
time, increases or decreases in Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

3-



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County
Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

The statement of activities presents district-wide information showing how the District’s Net
Position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in Net Position are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of when cash is received
or paid. Thus, some revenues and expenses reported in this statement will result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused sick leave which is available
for redemption upon retirement).

Both of the district-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the District include
vocational and technical education focusing on career development and administration. The
business-type activities include food service, bookstore and child care.

The district-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 in this report.

2) Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District uses
funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations. Within
the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the District’s most significant
funds rather than the District as a whole. Major funds are separately reported while all others are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Since there is only one non-major fund, the
activity fund, it is reported alongside the major funds.

Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the district-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements
focus on short-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spending resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating the District’s short-term financing requirements. Most of the District’s basic services
are included here, such as vocational and technical education focusing on career development and
administration. Property taxes, bond proceeds, federal grants, state grants, and state formula aid
finance most of these activities.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the district-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s short-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County '
Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

The District internally maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, building fund, capital
projects fund and sinking fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.

General Fund: The general fund is the chief operating fund of the District. The general
fund accounts for all financial resources not accounted for within another fund. This includes funds
included within the internal Sturm fund which includes amounts committed by Board resolution
to be maintained permanently but without a defined purpose.

Special Revenue Funds: Special revenue funds are used to account for and report proceeds
of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes
other than debt service and capital projects. The proceeds of specific revenue sources are the
foundation for the fund. The District reports the building fund and the insurance fund as special
revenue funds.

Capital Projects Fund: Capital project funds are used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays. The District
reports unspent bond proceeds in the capital projects fund

Debt Service Fund: Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. The
District reports resources collected from property taxes levied for bond payments in the debt
service fund along with interest earnings on funds accumulated.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general, building and sinking funds.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general fund and building fund to
demonstrate compliance with these budgets.

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass essentially the same
functions reported as business-type activities in the district-wide financial statements. The same
type of information as the district-wide financial statements is reported, only in more detail.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the district-wide financial statements because the
resources of these funds are not available to support the District’s own programs.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13-19 of this report.
3) Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the district-wide and fund financial statements. Notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 20-43 of this report.



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County
Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Other information, in addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, includes
certain required supplementary information including budgetary comparison schedules for the
general and building funds and schedules for the Oklahoma Teacher Retirement system

Required supplementary information can be found on pages 42-47 of this report.
II1. Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in Net Position
may be observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the District as a whole.

The net position of the District’s governmental activities increased by 12.61% from $44,663,761
to $50,295,731. The business-type activities net position was transferred into governmental
activities due to programs not being financially self-sustaining.

The District’s share of the net OPEB asset reported for the year with implementation of GASB 74
was $151,018.

An additional portion of the District’s Net Position, $7,095,907 (14.11% of total Net Position),
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used or are not in
expendable form. The remaining balance of Net Position, $43,404,734 is the investment in capital
assets less related debt. The District uses these capital assets to provide instruction, support, and
transportation services; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the District’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. :

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report positive a balance in Net Position.
The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. Comparative data is accumulated and
presented to assist analysis.

The following provides a summary of the District’s Net Position for the year ended 2018 and 2017:



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Net Position Summary

Current Assets
Capital Assets
Other Assets
Total assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities due within a year
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

June 30:

Net Activities

General Revenues
Advalorem taxes
Other
State sources
Federal sources

Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants

Total revenue

Expenses
Instruction
Support services
Other outlays
Interest expense on long-term debt
Food services
Bookstore services
Child care services

Total expenses

Change in Net position
Transfers

Restatement

Net position, beginning of year

Canadian County

Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
26,094,671 $ 26,267,686 - $ 114,670  $26,094,671 $26,382,356
66,909,656 65,371,681 - 3,189,568 66,909,656 68,561,249
151,018 - - - 151,018 -
93,155,345 91,639,367 - 3304238 93,155,345 94,943,605
4,501,552 7,790,203 - - 4,501,552 7,790,203
6,039,249 5,568,433 - 23,493 6,039,249 5,591,926
38,327,267 48,573,469 - - 38,327,267 48,573,469
44,366,516 54,141,902 - 23493 44,366,516 54,165,395
2,994,650 623,907 - - 2,994,650 3,618,557
43,404,734 40,640,542 - 3,189,568 43,404,734 43,830,110
7,095,097 7,499,820 - - 7,095,097 7,499,820
(204,100) (3,476,601) - 91,177 (204,100) (3.385,424)
50,295,731 44,663,761 - 3,280,745 50,295,731 47,944,506
The following table provides a summary of the District’s operating results for the year ended
Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 30,245,947 $ 30,317,048 - $ - $ 30,245,947 $30,317,048
397,002 235,732 - - 397,002 235,732
3,798,854 3,914,046 - - 3,798,854 3,914,046
69,895 36,198 - - 69,895 36,198
1,631,681 1,346,052 - 499,362 1,631,681 1,845,414
848,452- 769,890- - 39,335- $ 848,452 809,225~
36,991,831 36,618,966 - 538,697 36,991,831 37,157,663
13,923,485 13,965,601 - - 13,923,485 13,965,601
16,889,599 17,147,978 - - 16,889,599 17,147,978
2,596,463 7,575,696 - - 2,596,463 7,575,696
1,003,705 765,663 - - 1,003,705 765,663
- - - 709,175 - 709,175
- - - 285,873 - 285,873
- - - 231,199 - 231,199
34,413,252 39,454,938 - 1,226,247 34,413,252 40,681,185
2,578,579 (2,835,972) - (687,550) 2,578,579 (3,523,522)
3,280,743 (3,043,941) (3,280,743) 3,043,941 - -
(227,352) - - - (227,352) -
44,663,761 50,543,674 3,280,743 924,354 47,944,50_4 51,468,028
$ 50,295,731 $ 44,663,761 - $ 3,280,745 $ 50,295,731 $ 47,944,506

Net position, end of year

IV. Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
budgetary and finance-related legal requirements.



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County
Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on short-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund and building fund revenues and

expenditures:
Increase
Percent Percent (Decrease) Percent
Revenues: 2018 of Total 2017 of Total  from Prior Year _ Change
Property Taxes $27,849,877 82.58% $26,272,858 83.00% $ 1,577,019 6.00%
Tuition and Fees 1,083,012 3.21% 998,040 3.15% 84,972 8.51%
Intergovernmental State Sources 2,698,853 8.00% 2,987,618 9.44% (288,765) -9.67%
Intergovernmental Federal Sources 918,346 2.72% 823,445 2.60% 94,901 11.52%
Miscellaneous 975,753 2.89% 535,622 1.69% 440,131 82.17%
Investment Income 200,753 0.60% 35,015 0.11% 165,738 473.33%
$33,726,594 100.00% $31,652,598 100.00% $ 2,073,996 6.55%
> Increases in property taxes resulted in the funding increase.
Increase
Percent Percent (Decrease) Percent

Expenditures 2018 of Total 2017 of Total ~ from Prior Year _ Change

Instruction $11,831,450 32.17% $12,082,595 2993% $ (251,145) -2.08%

Support services 15,802,961 42.96% 15,384,621 38.11% 418,340 2.72%

Operation of noninstruction 2,311,956  6.29% 1,829,154 4.53% 482,802 26.39%

Facilties 5,276,965 14.35% 9,489,872 23.51% (4,212,907)  -44.39%

Debt Service 1,558,613  4.24% 1,585,313 3.93% (26,700) -1.68%

$36,781,945 100.00% $40,371,555 100.00% $ (3,589,610) -8.89%

» Decreases in expenditure functions were due primarily to the use of bond proceeds for

various purposes in prior year.

V. General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year, the Board adopted amendments to the budget. Budget amendments are approved

once final property tax valuation and allocations are received.

General fund revenues exceeded budget by $1.8 million, most of which resulted from increases in

property taxes and other local sources.

VI. Capital Asset and Debt Administration



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County
Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Capital Assets. The District’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted
to $66,909,656 and $68,561,249, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment
in capital assets includes land, buildings, equipment, vehicles and mineral interests.

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land . $ 1,013,987 $ 986,987  § - $ - $ 1,013,987 $ 986,987
Construction in progress - - - - - -
Total capital assets not depreciated 1,013,987 986,987 - - 1,013,987 986,987
Buildings 73,835,816 69,978,733 - 3,857,083 73,835,816 73,835,816
Furniture and small equipment 183,139 130,673 - 11,221 183,139 141,894
Machinery and equipment 6,068,165 : 5,802,789 - 437,300 6,068,165 6,240,089
Vehicles 1,241,814 1,063,761 - - 1,241,814 1,063,761
Total capital assets being depreciated 81,328,934 76,975,956 - 4,305,604 81,328,934 81,281,560
Less accumulated depreciation (15,433,265) (12,591,262) - (1,116,036) (15,433,265) (13,707,298)
65,895,669 64,384,694 - 3,189,568 65,895,669 67,574,262
Total capital assets 3 66,909,656 $ 65,371,681 - 3,189,568  $66,909,656 $ 68,561,249

Additional information concerning the District’s capital assets is contained in the notes to the
financial statements.

Debt. At year-end, the District had the following debt outstanding.

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
General Obligation Bonds $ 8,010,000 $ 9,345,000 $ - $ - $ 8,010,000 $ 9,345,000
Capital Lease Obligations 38,320,904 15,494,922 - - 38,320,904 15,494,922
$ 46,330,904 $ 24,839,922  § - $ - $46,330,904 $24,839,922

Oklahoma statutes limit the general obligation debt that can be issued to 10% of the assessed
valuation for the District. The District’s imposed limit is approximately $183,964,025.

More information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.

The District’s share of the Teacher Retirement System’s net pension liability as of June 30, 2018
was $22,470,710. This was a decrease of $4.5 million from fiscal year 2017 primarily due to
investment gains excess of expected by the Teacher Retirement System in 2017, which was the
measurement year for the net pension liability.



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County
Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

VII. Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact the Chief Finance Officer, Canadian Valley Technology Center,
District No. 6, 6505 E. Highway 66, E1 Reno, Oklahoma 73036.

-10-
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County
Statement of Net Position
June 30,2018

ASSETS

Cash and cash investments
Accounts receivable, net

Inventory

Capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated, net of depreciation

Net OPEB Asset
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Long-term Liabilties

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted - nonexpendable
Restricted for:
Building fund
Debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$21,407,331
4,567,290
120,050
1,013,987
65,895,669
151,018

93,155,345

4,501,552

1,637,719
776,863

3,624,667
38,327,267

44,366,516

2,994,650

43,404,734
120,050

5,891,245
1,083,802

(204,100)

$50,295,731

$ -




4!

SJuowWIoIe)s [erouRul) 9591} Jo Med [e13ajur ue are sajou JurAueduroode oy,

- $§  TELS6TOS $ Surpus ‘vorysod 19N

EYL08T € 607 9V Vi parersal se ‘Guuuwidaq ‘worysod 19N
(€pL08C°E) TTE6S8'S s19ss® 19U W 93ury)
(€pL08T€) YV T6LLE . SIQJSUBI PUB SONUSASI [BIUST [BIO],
(€vL°08T°€) EVL°08TE SIoJSuRI]

- $68°69 suoneudordde [e1apag

- $S8°86L°E suonzidoxdde a1elg

- €58°6LT 12710

- 861°CIT aWoour 1$31A)U]

- 156 . S9X®) 911S 19710

- STLIHY'1 sosodind 99(A13S 3q3p 10J PAIAJ] “SIXE} WIO[EA PY

- , 0¥S819°% sasodind Surppng 103 PAAI| “SIXE] WIIO[RA PY

- 6L9°G81°61 sosodind [e1oua3 10J PAIAI] ‘SAXE} WIIO[RA PY

SONUSASY [eIoUSD)

- $  (6rreee1e) § 0 - $  TShst8 $ I89TE9T §  TTEIWYE  §

- (S0L°€00°T) - - - SOL'€00'T

- €LTSS - £¥9°79S - . 0LE'LOS

- (0sTLST) - - , - 0STLST

- (196°TLS'T) - - 786'85¢€ £V61€6°

- (Lot°€es en) - - - L91°€T8TT

- (89¥°098°¢) - ¥96°60T - TEV990Y

- $  (I¥60LSTT) $ - $ SY8'6L $ 669TLTT - $  S8YETOET $

SAMIAIOY SAAOY SUOHNQLIUO)) SUONNALIJU0)) EETSEN sosuadxyg
odA]-ssoursng [EJUSUILI2A0D) pue sjueID) pue sjueiD 10J sagrey)
[ende) SuneradQ
S}esSY 19N W sa8uey)) . SONUSATY WEIZ0IJ

pue sanuaAYy (sasuadxdg) 19N

8T0T ‘0€ dunp papuy Iv3 X 3y} 10
SIMIAIVY JO JUdWdE)S
£yuno)) ueipeue))
9 "ON JILISI(] [00YS 1)U AFo[ouydd ], AJ[[EA UrIpeUR)

SQIJAIIOR [BJUSUILIOAOS [BIO],
asuadxa 3s919ju]
pre [eroueuy pue sjuswAedoy
sAe[InQ 19010
UOIONIISUI-UON
Teuonerado- saoialas poddng
JeuorjONNSUl - SIIAISS poddng
uononsuy
ISOIIAIO. [BJUSUILISAOD)
‘surexdo1 J/suorjoun,g
JUSUIULIAOL) ATEWLI ]



T€L'S6T°0S §

el

sjuwoje)s [eIOURUIY 9S9Y) Jo wed [eidojur ue ore sojou SurAuedwiodsse oy T,

sanIAnoe [ejuewanog Jo uonisod JoN

206°90S°T spuny oy ut papodol jou oxe a103a1013 ‘pue spotrad amyng o} sjqeoidde are suorsuad 0} Paje[ol SIOMOSII JO SMO[JUT PUE SMO[JINO PALIDJA
(01L°0LY"TD) spuny oy} ur papiodar jou are ‘a10je1oy) ‘pue poriad Juarmo a3 ut djqeed pue anp jou are suonesiqo uorsuad N
810°151 spuny oy} ur papodar Jou ST 0S 90MOS3I [RIOURULJ B JOU ST J95S8 gHJO 1N
850°855°C ‘SPUNy 9} Ul PALISJSP SIe JI0JAISY} PUE
‘somyipuadxa s,porrad juarmod oy 10§ Aed 0} YInous UOOS S[QB[IEAR JOU OIE Inq “Ieak SIY) PaJoa[[00 9q [[IM 9[qeAls0al saxe) Auadolg
(L6£°T6€) ‘spuny oy ur paprodar Jou are 210je19Y) pue porad Juarmo oy ur ojqeAed pue anp J0U SIB YOIYM S9oussqe pajesusdwo)
959°606°99 ‘spuny oy} uj pap1odal Jou 9100187} PUB SIOIMOSAI [RIOUBUI JOU I8 SIIALOR JUSWUIIACT Ul pasn sjasse [ende)
19SNEO3q JURIJFIP QI SIOSSE JOU JO JUSWISe)S SY) Ul SINIANOR [EJUSUIISA0d 103 paptodai sjunoury
LO8'8LO‘T - $ - $ S0S‘008°0T  § 8SESITYL  § SO0UR[EQ PUNJ PUER SI0INOSAI JO SMO[JUL PALIJSP ‘SSNI[IQRI] [EJ0],
£88°¥85°0C 060°5L8 - - 066°€€0°6 £08°5L9°01 Sedue[eq puny [ejo L,
818168 - - - - 818168 pougisseury
¥¥9°01L°6 - - - 60L°9¥ S€6°€99°6 paudissy
- - - - - - papruwoy
1LET98°6 060°5L8 - - 187°L86'8 - pajpigsey
050°0TT - - - - 050°0C1 s[qepuadsuoN
:sooue[eg pun,g
850°85S°€ LIL'€0T - - TOL'961°T 6£9°LS1°T soxe) Auadoxd paoyay
1S90INOSAI JO SMOJU] PILIBJO
6TL1S6'T - - - £18°695 916'18€°1 SenIIqer o],
110°1€ - - - - 110v1¢€ sooussqe pajesuadwo))
171098 - - - - 171°098 sojqeded 10410
LLS'LLL $ - - $ - $ £18°695 $  YILLOT $ o[qeAed sjunosdy
‘SenIIqery

SEONVTVE ANNA ANV ‘SIDUNO0STY 40 SMOTINI AIIIIAAA ‘SALLITIIVI'T

0L9'P60°9T $ L08‘8LO‘T - $ - $ S0S‘008°0T  $ 8SE'SITHL ¢
050°0Z1 - - - - 050°0Z1
SLO601 - - - €9 TI8°801
Y6161 - - - 984 8TS 161
TLT99TY 002°01¢ - - 0sS°0EY’T TTSST9T
0EE°LOY'IT  §  109°898 = $ - $ LLT69E6  $  Iv¥e9I°ll $
[eloL pun,g pun,g punyg pung [e1sUsD)
90IAIS sy9loig souemsuy Suippng
195 renden punj anuoAdy [eradg
(3
8107 "0¢dung

Spunj [BJUIWIIACL) — }IIYS due[RyY
rwioyep[(Q ‘Ajuno)) ueipeue))
9 *ON PLOSI(] [00YdS 1)U AF0[0uyII ], AJ[[BA UEIpRUR))

S)asse [ejo],

SOLIOJUSAU]
SO[qBAI2931 1YI0
SIUSUILIOAOS I9YJ0 WOL SI[GRAIINY
s9]qeA10ar xe) Audoig
SIUSUI)SIAUL [SED PUR YSB)
SLASSY

SIUQULSOAU]



14!

S)uSWaIL)S [RIoURUL) 359} Jo Jed [ei3ojul ue are sajou SurAueduroodse ayJ,

€88'p8S0C  § 060°SL8 s - $ - 3 066°€€0°6 €08°'SLY0T §
SY6191°CT 0659701 TSE8LY T¥S°19 8EVI0V'6 Y20 YL 01
(T90°LLS'T) (00S°1LT) (Ts€'8L9) (1+5°19) (8+¥°L9¢€) (177°'860)
9LI‘16 = = = = 9LT16
(8€7°899°1) (00S°1LT) (Ts€'8LY) avs19) 8¥t°L9€)
SH6°I8L°9€E €19°8SS°T TSE8LY PS19 916°SSL6 TS LULYT
€19°€TT €19°€TT - - - -
000°SEET 000°SEE°T - - - -
TLE'LOS - - - - 1LELOS
S96°9LT’S - ¥8°16T ¥80°LY STRTE6Y €S SIDIAIS
$8SH08°T - ¥TESOT - L0T91 $S0°€89°T
196°708°S1 - 8LES6 SHEl 6€S9L0Y 66S°L19°TT
0SH1€8°T1 - 978°681 TI0°1 SHE0EL L9TYT601
LOLETI'SE CITL8ET - - 89¥°88€°6 OTT'8EEHT
9ERI6 - - - - V€816
086°869°C LT1 - - L09°1 ITL69T
€5L°6L6 - - - S00°88 81L°L88
861°CIT [SZan - - SLL6E 8167091
TI10°€80°1 - - - - TI0°€80°T
8IV°STC6C  $ TIPS SLET $ - $ - §  180°65T6 $  96L°0658T §
[elol, punyg pung punyg punyy [eIouaD
901AI9S syoaforg JoueInsuy Suipning
192 rende) pun,j aNUIAIY [e103dS

810 ‘0€ dunp papuy Ied X 3y} 1o
spun,f [BJUIMWIIIAOL) - SIdUB[RY puUny ul saguey) puy
‘soam)rpuadx 7 ‘SaNuUIANY JO JUIMII LIS

rwogep[O ‘Ajuno)) uripeue))

Surpus * SHONVIVE ANNA
pajejsal s Surumgaq “SAONVIVE ANNA
ADONVIVE ANNA NI IONVHD LAN

SIgJsuel],
(SASN) SADYNOS HNIONVNIA JAHLO

(L6€°68E) STINLIANAIXA (HAANDIIAO SANNIAATT A0 SSAIXA

sormipuadxa [ej0],

1sa193u]
redioutig

901AIAG 1991
sAe[Ino 19YI0
uonONISUOd pue uonismboe sanIoR]
uoroNISUIUoU Jo uorjerado
sa01A19s poddng
uononIsuJ

lichiilg)

STIANLIANIIXA

SONUSASI [BIO],
$90IN0S [B19P9]
$90INOS LIS
[800] 10410
1S919]U]
S99J pue uomIn [,
saxe] Apadoid
$90IN0S [B00]
SAONIATY

9 "ON] JILYSI(] [00YS JUI)) AF0[0uydd ], A3[EA UBIpRUB))



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
And Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to
the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30,2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of changes in net assets
are different because:

Net change in fund balance

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation and net cost from disposition of equipment
in the current period.

Losses on the disposal of capital assets that do not use current financial resources
are reported as expenses.

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the District's
fiscal year ends, they are not considered as "available" revenues in the governmental

funds and are, instead counted as deferred revenues. They are however, recorded
as revenues in the statement of activities.

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expenditures. However,
the Statement of Activities reports the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee
contributions as pension expense

Support for pension contributions from nonemployer contributing entities not in a
special funding situation does not provide current financial resources so are not
recorded in governmental fund but are recorded as revenue in the Statement of Activities

The liability for compensated absences does not require the use of current financial
resources because it is measured by the amounts earned during the year rather than
the amounts actually paid. Therefore, it is not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to government funds,

$(1,577,062)

1,824,723

(37,337)

998,088

(2,041,395)

1,022,555

(23,351)

while the repayment of principal on long-term debt consumes current financial resources.

Some expenses do not require current financial resources therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in net position in governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma

Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds

ASSETS
Current assets
Other receivables
Inventories
Total current assets
Nonurrent assets
Buildings
Fumiture and equipment
Less Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Other payables
Total current liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

June 30,2018
Food Bookstore
Services Services

Childcare
Services

Total

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

16



-

Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position— Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Nonoperating Income (Expenses)
Transfer of assets to governmental activities

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, beginning as restated

NET POSITION, ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Food Bookstore Childcare
Services Services Services Total
(1,000,473) (541,843) (1,738,427) (3,280,743)
(1,000,473) (541,843) (1,738,427) (3,280,743)
1,000,473 541,843 1,738,427 3,280,743
- $ - $ - -
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma
Statement of Cash Flows— Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and others
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating subsidies and transfer from/to other funds

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of fixed assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense

Change in assets and liabilities
Receivables
Inventories
Accounts payable
Other payables

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Food Bookstore Childcare
Services Services Services Total
$ 922 $ 7,955 $ 25,748 $ 34,625
522 73,730 (2,553) 71,699
(5,051) (373) (9,722) (15,146)
(3,607) 81,312 13,473 91,178
3,607 (81,312) (13,473) (91,178)
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - - - -
922 7,953 25,748 34,623
3,415 74,582 2,053 80,050
(2,893) (852) (4,606) (8,351)
(5,049) (371) (9,722) (15,142)
$ (3,605) $ 81,312 $ 13,473 $ 91,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30,2018
Agency Fund
Activity
Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 141,033
Total assets $ 141,033
LIABILITIES
Due to student activities $ 62,099
Due to administrative activities 78,934
Total liabilities $ 141,033

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
19
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

I. Organization

Canadian Valley Technology Center, District No. 6, Canadian County, Oklahoma (the District), is a
corporate body for public purposes created under Title 70 of Oklahoma Statutes and, accordingly, is a
separate entity for operating and financial reporting purposes. The District is part of the public school
system of Oklahoma under the general direction and control of the Oklahoma Department of Career
Technology, and is financially dependent on State of Oklahoma support. The general operating authority
for the public school system is the Oklahoma School Code contained in Title 70, Oklahoma Statutes.

The governing body of the District is the board of education, which is composed of five elected members.
An appointed superintendent is the chief executive officer of the District.

The Board constituting an on-going entity, is the level of government which has governance
responsibilities over all activities within the jurisdiction of the District. The Board receives funding from
local, state, and federal sources and must comply with the requirements of these funding sources.

The Board is not included in any other governmental “reporting entity” since Board members are elected
by the public and have decision making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility
to significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

II. Summary of significant accounting policies

Significant accounting and reporting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial
statements are as follows:

Reporting Entity — In evaluating how to define the District for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria established by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus. Potential component units
are evaluated based on whether the District is financially accountable. The District is considered
financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board and (1) it is able to
impose its will on the organization or (2) there is the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the District. Based upon the application of
these criteria, there are no component units included in the District’s reporting entity.

The Canadian Valley Technology Education Foundation is not included in the reporting entity. The
District does not appoint any board members or exercise any over sight authority over the Foundation.

District-wide and Fund Financial Statements — The district-wide financial statements (the statement of net
position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government. Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary
activities as either governmental or business type. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function segment. Program revenues include 1) tuition and fees charges to students and 2) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function or segment. Taxes, state appropriations and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

20



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma
Notes to Financial Statements
' June 30,2018

Major individual funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurements Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation — The district-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grant and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Amounts reported as program revenue include 1) tuition and fees charged to students, 2) operating grants
and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated general resources are
reported as general revenue rather than as program revenue. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis is
placed on major funds with the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it
is the primary operating fund of the District or meets the following criteria:
a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental
or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds or that category
or type; and
b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined.

Governmental funds

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the District’s primary operating fund, which is used to account for
all financial transactions except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Major revenue sources include local property taxes and state funding formula.
Expenditures include all costs associated with the daily operations of the schools
except for programs funded for building repairs and maintenance, school construction,
and other long-term liabilities. The general fund includes federal and state restricted
monies that must be expended for specific programs.

The building fund is a special revenue fund used to account for revenue sources
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes. Building fund monies
are derived from property taxes levied for the following purposes: erecting,
remodeling, repairing, or maintaining school buildings; purchasing furniture,
equipment, and computer software to be used on or for school district property; paying
energy and utility costs; purchasing telecommunications services; paying fire and
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2018

casualty insurance premiums for school facilities; purchasing security systems; and
paying salaries of security personnel. Restricted Net Position are restricted by
enabling legislation.

The insurance fund consists of monies from insurance proceeds for the purpose of
replacing buildings, furniture and equipment lost in the tornado on May 31, 2013.

Capital project funds are used to account for proceeds from long-term financing and
revenues and expenditures related to authorized construction and other capital asset
acquisitions.

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of funds for the periodic
payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt.

Proprietary Fund

The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating
income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows.
All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their
activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position.

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the
general public. These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the
measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to the
private sector. The reporting entity includes three activities reported in the Enterprise
Fund. They are Food Services, Book Store Service, and Child Care Services. For the
year ended June 30, 2018, the District has determined that user charges are not
intended to fully support the programs, so programs have been absorbed by the
general fund.

Fiduciary Fund (Not included in government-wide statements)

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the District. When
these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either a
nonexpendable trust fund or an expendable trust fund is used. The terms
"nonexpendable" and "expendable” refer to whether or not the District is under an
obligation to maintain the trust principal. Agency funds generally are used to
account for assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. Agency funds are not involved in the
mea}gsurement of results of operations; therefore, measurement focus is not applicable
to them.

Agency Fund - The activity fund is a fund used to account for the proceeds of
revenue sources from student activities that are restricted by law. This fund is
administered by the District’s administrative staff, under the authority of the board
of education, for collecting, disbursing, and accounting for specific activities to
further the educational programs of the District.
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2018

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s practice to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Use of Estimates — Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and fund equity, the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenditures. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Budget — The following is the budget development process for all funds. A public hearing is held within
45 days of the beginning of the fiscal year. The budget shall be approved by the board of education within
30 days of the beginning of the fiscal year. The District shall amend the budget after July 1 whenever the
State Incentive Aid and certified property tax valuations become available.

The board of education will not exceed the level of appropriation for each fund as established by the
budget and may amend the budget by budget amendment, according to law. The budget is updated and
reported to the superintendent and board of education in the fiscal year, as needed. At the end of the fiscal
year, unencumbered appropriations (balances) lapse and become a part of fund balance.

The following is the budget administration and management process. Each fund has a budget that is
assigned by project, allocated to a control account by function (to third digit) and object. The District’s
budget is administered by a person authorized by the superintendent to monitor and control the budget as
per board of education policy. Budget expenditures are monitored through the financial management
system to prevent expenditures from increasing above appropriated budget or project levels within the
budget unless authorized within total available appropriations. Requisitions are submitted for purchase
orders along with blanket salary reserves and employee contracts to the board of education as
encumbrances against legal appropriations by fund.

Cash and cash investments — The District considers all cash on hand, demand deposits, and interest-
bearing checking accounts and certificate of deposits, held at an individual bank which are subject to early
withdraw penalties no matter what the maturity period, to be cash.

Investments — State statutes authorize the District to invest in direct obligations of the United States
government and agencies; savings accounts; and warrants, bonds, or judgments of the District.  All
nvestments are carried at fair value. The District had no investments as of June 30, 2018.

Receivables — Uncollected taxes assessed on valuations made each year are recorded in the District’s
governmental fund financial statements. All accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated
uncollectible amounts.

Inventories — Inventories in the governmental funds are carried at cost and are recorded as expenditures
when consumed on a first-in/first-out (FIFO) method rather than when purchased The Food Service
inventory consists of food held for resale. The bookstore inventory consists of books, paper, and office
supplies. The Child Care Service inventory consists of food supplies. All inventory is recorded at the
lower of cost or market. The cost of other consumable materials and supplies on band are immaterial to
the financial statements, and the District has therefore chosen to report these items as
expenditures/expenses at the time of purchase.
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2018

Restricted Net Position — Amounts that can be spent on only specific purposes because of Oklahoma State
law, or externally imposed conditions from private and governmental grantors are classified as restricted
assets.

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the district-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and
an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset’s life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The District incurred no interest expense for construction
of capital assets for business-type activities during the year ended June 30, 2018.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Type of Asset Years

Land N/A

Buildings 25-50

Furniture 15-20

Machinery and Equipment 5-20
Vehicles 8

In the government-wide financial statements all machinery, equipment, furniture and automobiles costing
$5,000 or more has been capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful life. Repairs, remodeling
and/or construction costing $25,000 or more has been capitalized and depreciated over the estimated
useful life.

Deferred Outflows of Resources — The District reports decreases in net assets that related to future periods
as deferred outflows of resources on the statement of net position. A deferred outflow is reported for (1)
contributions made to Oklahoma Teacher Retirement System (TRS the Plan) between the measurement
date of the net pension liabilities (June 30, 2017) and the end of the current fiscal year (June 30, 2018).
(2) A loss from changes in assumptions used by the actuary is amortized to pension expense over the
average expected remaining service life of the Plan (3) the actual pension plan investment earnings less
than the expected amounts included in determining pension expense. This deferred inflow of resources is
amortized to pension expense over a total of 5 years, including the current year (4) A loss in changes in
assumptions used by the actuary is amortized to pension expense over the average expected remaining
service life of the Plan.

Deferred Inflows of Resources — The District’s statements of net position and it governmental fund
balance sheet report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element reflects an increase in net assets that applies to a future period.

Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the statement of net position for (1) A gain from difference
between expected and actual experience that the pension plan actuary uses to develop expectations such
as future salary increases and inflation. This deferred inflow of resources is amortized to pension expense
over the average expected remaining service life of the Plan.
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

In its governmental funds, the only deferred inflow of resources is for revenues not considered available.

The District will not recognize the related revenues until available (collected no later than 60 days after

the end of the District’s fiscal year) under the modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies to be

{)eliorted El this category. Accordingly, deferred property taxes are reported in the governmental funds
alance sheet.

Long-Term Liabilities — In district-wide financial statements, long-term debt is reported as liabilities in
the governmental activities statement of net position.

Pensions — For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and the net OPEB asset, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense are recorded based
on the District’s prorated share of the Oklahoma Teacher Retirement System. Information about the
fiduciary net position of the Oklahoma Teacher Retirement System (TRS) and additions to/deductions
from TRS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported to TRS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Compensated Absences — The District's policies regarding vacation time permit employees to accumulate
earned but unused vacation leave. A maximum of ten days may be carried over to the next anniversary
year. The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide
statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial
statements, governmental funds report only the compensated absence liability payable from expendable
available financial resources, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.

The Board/District will provide one day of sick leave per month of duty contract. The right to such leave
shall vest at the beginning of the contract period. The maximum number of days of accumulated sick
leave that may be carried forward from one contract year to the next shall be 60 days. Unused sick leave
is paid when the employee retires if they have been employed by the District for 10 years or more and
have a minimum of 30 days accrued. Amounts are paid out to an employer sponsored 403(b) plan at 2%
of salary.

The general fund is used to liquidate compensated absences.

Fund Equity

Government-wide Statements and Proprietary funds

Equity is classified as Net Position and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation
and capital asset debt

b. Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints on the use either by
(1) external groups or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation(3)
amounts that are in nonspendable form.

c. Unrestricted net position — All other net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “Net investment in capital assets”.

II. Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
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Fund Statements

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that

comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to

honor constraints on specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds

%aﬁ be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as
ollows:

e Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained

intact.

e Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed
on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt
covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District has classified
Building Fund revenue from levy as being restricted because the use is restricted by State
Statute for capital expenditures. Debt service resources are to be used for future servicing of
the general obligation bonds and are restricted through debt covenants. Capital project
revenue from bond proceeds are restricted by State Statute and are legally segregated for
funding of voter approved uses. Funds received from certain student activities are restricted

by State Statute.

e Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Education. These
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board removes or changes the
specified use by taking the same type of action (resolution) that was employed when the
funds were initially committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to
the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those

contractual requirements.

e Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent
to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be
expressed by the Board or through the Board delegating this responsibility to the
superintendent through the budgetary process. This classification also includes the remaining
positive fund balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund. The District
has assigned interest earnings to the funds where earned for the purposes defined by the fund.

e Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund.
The Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance

amounts.

The District would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed
resources, and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the
right to selectively spend Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified

funds.
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State Revenues — Revenues from state sources for current operations are primarily governed by the state
aid formula under the provisions of Article XVIII, Title 70, Oklahoma Statutes. The Oklahoma
Department of Career Technology administers the allocation of state aid funds to school districts based
on information accumulated from the districts.

After review and verification of reports and supporting documentation, the Oklahoma Department of
Career Technology may adjust subsequent fiscal period allocations of money for prior year errors
disclosed by review. Normally, such adjustments are treated as reductions or additions of revenues of the
year when the adjustment is made.

The District receives revenues from the State to administer certain categorical educational programs.
Oklahoma Department of Career Technology rules require that revenues earmarked for these programs be
expended only for the program for which the money is provided and require that money not expended, as
of the close of the fiscal year, be carried forward into the following year to be expended for the same
categorical programs.  The Oklahoma Department of Career Technology requires that categorical
educational program revenues be accounted for in the general fund.

Property Tax Revenue — The District is authorized by state law to levy property taxes, which consist of ad
valorem taxes on real and personal property within the District. The county assessor, upon receipt of the
certification of tax levies from the Canadian County Excise Board, extends the tax levies on the tax roll
for submission to the county treasurer prior to October 1. The county treasurer must commence tax
collection within 15 days of receipt of the tax rolls. The first half of taxes is due prior to January 1 and
the second half is due prior to April 1.

If the first half of tax payment is not made timely, the entire tax becomes due and payable on January 2.
Second half taxes are delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year of assessment. If not for a
period of three years or more as of the date such taxes firs become due, the property is offered for sale for
the amount of taxes due.

On-behalf Payments — The State of Oklahoma makes direct payments to Oklahoma Teachers Retirement
System on behalf participating schools. The pro rata portion of the payment attributable to the District is
recognized in these financial statements as an addition to state revenues and recording the related expense.

Subsequent Event - The District has evaluated subsequént events through December 31, 2018, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

II1. Deposits, investments, and collateral

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
District’s deposits may not be returned or the District will not be able to recover collateral securities in
the possession of an outside party. The District’s policy requires collateral for demand deposits and
certificates of deposit for all amounts not covered by federal deposit insurance.

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The District’s investment policies are governed by Oklahoma Statutes. Permissible
investments include direct obligations of the United States government and agencies; certificates of
deposit of savings and loan associations, and bank and trust companies; and savings accounts or savings
certificates of savings and loan association and bank and trust companies. Collateral is required for
demand deposits and certificates of deposit for all amounts not covered by federal depository insurance.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk: The District places no limit on the amount it may invest in any
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one issuer.

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest
changes. The District has no policy on interest rate risk.

IV.Disaggregated Receivables and Payables

Receivables at June 30, 2018, for the District’s individual funds are as follows:

Total
General Fund Building Fund Sinking Fund Receivables
Governmental Activities
Taxes, gross $ 2,783,322.00 $ 1,473,080 § 210,560 $ 4,466,962
Due from other Governments ' 191,528.00 415 - 191,943
Other receivables 108,812.00 263 - 109,075
$ 3,083,662.00 $ 1,473,758 $ 210,560 $ 4,767,980
Less: Allowance for uncollectables (157,800) (42,530) (360) (200,330)
$ 2,925,862 $ 1,431,228 §$ 210,200 $ 4,567,650

Payables at June 30, 2018, for the District’s individual funds are as follows:

Salaries Total
Vendors and Benefits  Payables
Governmental Activities
General Fund $ 207,764 $ 860,142 $ 1,067,906
Building Fund 569,813 - 569,813

§ 777,577 § 860,142 $ 1,637,719

V. Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following as of June 30, 2018:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Books and Supplies held for Resale § 74,582.00 $ - § 74,582.00
Bulk Supplies 42,053.00 - 42,053.00
Food Commodities 3,415.00 - 3,415.00
Total $ 120,050.00 $ -3 120,050.00
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VI. Long term liabilities

The long-term liability balances and activity for the year were as follows:

Beginning Amounts

Balance, As Due within

restated Additions Reductions Ending One Year

Compensated absences $ 675,024 % 31,384 $ - $ 706408 $ 314,011

General obligation bonds 9,345,000 - (1,335,000) 8,010,000 1,335,000

Capital lease payable 15,494,922 25,000,000 (2,174,018) 38,320,904 1,975,656

$ 25514946  $25,031384  $(3,509,018) $ 47,037,312 § 3,624,667
Less cash held by trustee bank (108,783) $(27,556,088)
Net pension liability 26,982,302 22,470,710

Total governmental activity long-

term liabilities $ 52,388,465 $ 41,951,934

The compensated absences are liquidated by the general fund. General obligation bonds are liquidated

by the sinking fund. Capital lease payable is liquidated by the building fund.

Canadian Valley Technology Center issued $12,000,000 in building bonds dated June 1, 2014. The bonds
were for the purpose of providing additional resources for the replacement of the El Reno campus that
was destroyed in the tornado of May 31, 2013. The bonds are due on June 1, 2016, in the amount of
$1,320,000 and $1,335,000 is due on June 1 in each of the years 2017 to 2024. These bonds bear interest

at a rate of 2% to 3%.

The debt maturity on the building bonds is as follows:

Total Debt
Period Ending June 30, Principal Interest Service

2019 1,335,000 196,912 1,531,912

2020 1,335,000 170,212 1,505,212

2021 1,335,000 143,512 1,478,512

2022 1,335,000 113,476 1,448,476

2023 1,335,000 80,100 1,415,100
Thereafter 1,335,000 40,050 1,375,050

$ 8,010,000 $§ 744262 § 8,754,262

Canadian Valley Technology Center entered into a lease agreement with Bank of America, N.A. on
December 28, 2006. This agreement included a Ground Lease Agreement and a Lease/Purchase
Agreement. In March 22, 2005, Canadian Valley Technology Center purchased 30 acres of land for a new
east campus location for the school district. This Earl Cowan Campus is located at 12200 S.W. 15th Street,
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Oklahoma City, OK. The District is leasing this campus and the Main Campus in El Reno to the Bank of
America, N.A. for the purpose of constructing, renovating, remodeling and repairing properties on behalf
of the District. The term of the Ground Lease Agreement is through July 15, 2018. The lease term is
$10.00 per year commencing December 1, 2006. On December 12, 2012, the December 28, 2006 issue
was refinanced through the Canadian County Educational Facilities Authority under the same terms and
interest rates. This was done to comply with an Oklahoma Attorney General's opinion regarding lease
agreements with a ground lease agreement component.

The second part of the agreement involved the Lease/Purchase Agreement, dated May 1, 2007, between
the District and Bank of America, N.A. for the school facilities consisting of the new campus building
constructed at 12200 S.W. Oklahoma City, OK and the renovation and remodeling of the existing
cosmetology facilities at the El Reno Campus. On December 12, 2012, the May 1, 2007, issue was also
refinanced through the Canadian County Educational Facilities Authority under the same terms and
interest rates. This was done to comply with an Oklahoma Attorney General's opinion regarding lease
agreements with a ground lease agreement component.

The third agreement, dated March 3, 2009, involved the Lease/Purchase agreement between the District
and Standard Capital Finance, LLC for the re-roofing of two buildings on the El Reno Campus and
electrical wiring change out for two buildings on the Chickasha Campus and one building on the El Reno
Campus. The term of the lease was 10 years. This agreement included a Ground Lease Agreement and a
Lease/Purchase Agreement with UMB Bank N.A. Bank of Union has purchased this Lease/Purchase
Agreement. On February 14, 2013, the Lease/Purchase Agreement was paid off with a new
Lease/Purchase. This was done to comply with an Oklahoma Attorney General's opinion regarding lease
agreements with a ground lease component.

The fourth agreement, dated February 14, 2013, involved the Lease/Purchase Agreement between the
District and the Canadian County Educational Facilities Authority for the school facilities consisting of
building additions, remodeling of existing buildings, and the purchase of additional equipment. This issue
was for the amount of $9,950,000.00. This construction project was started in 2014. The trustee bank is
holding the cash in the construction escrow in the amount of $227.

The fifth agreement, dated October 1, 2017, involved the Lease/Purchase Agreement between the District
and the Canadian County Educational Facilities Authority for the school facilities consisting of
acquisition, construction and equipping of new education facilities. This issue was for the amount of
$25,000,000.00. This construction project will be started in fiscal year 2019. The trustee bank is holding
the cash in the construction escrow in the amount of $24,655,957.

The minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows as of June 30,2018:
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Canadian
County Ed
Facilities
2006 2007 2013c Authority
Period Ending June 30, Refinance Refinance Lease 2017 Lease Leases
2019 1,488,980 400,000 525,000 485,750 2,899,730
2020 - 1,693,746 1,250,000 1,000,000 3,943,746
2021 - 1,706,927 1,250,000 1,000,000 3,956,927
2022 - 3,162,014 1,000,000 4,162,014
2023 3,162,014 1,000,000 4,162,014
Thereafter - - 26,404,216 26,404,216
Total Minimum Lease
Payment $ 1,488,980 $ 3,800,673 $9,349,028 $30,889,966 $ 45,528,647
Less Interest (57,956) (355,801) (904,020) (5,889,966) (7,207,743)
Net $ 1,431,024 $ 3,444,872 $ 8,445,008 $25,000,000 $ 38,320,904
Capital assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:
Beginning  Corrections/ Ending
Balance Transfers Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 986987 $ - $ 27000 § - $ 1,013,987
Construction in progress - - - - -
Total capital assets not depreciated 986,987 - 27,000 - 1,013,987
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 69,978,733 3,857,083 - - 73,835,816
Furniture 130,673 11,221 41,245 - 183,139
Machinery and equipment 5,802,789 (1,649) 536,512 (269,487) 6,068,165
Transportation equipment 1,063,761 - 200,553 (22,500) 1,241,814
Total assets 76,975,956 3,866,655 778,310 (291,987) 81,328,934
Less Accumulated depreciation )
Buildings (9,254,892)  (1,012,617) (1,613,287) (11,880,796)
Furniture (31,165) 1,539 (8,637) - (38,263)
Machinery and equipment (2,647,513) 69,514 (449,961) 232,149 (2,795,811)
Transportation equipment (657,692) 15,066 (98,269) 22,500 (718,395)
Total Accumulated depreciation (12,591,262) (926,498) (2,170,154) 254,649 (15,433,265)
Total Capital assets being depreciated, net 64,384,694 2,940,157 (1,391,844) (37,338) 65,895,669
Governmental activities capital assets, net $65,371,681 $2,940,157 $(1,364,844) $ (37338)  $66,909,656
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Beginning Ending
Balance Corrections __Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 3,857,083  (3,857,083)
Furniture 11,221 (11,221)
Machinery and equipment 437,300 (437,300)
Total assets 4,305,604 _ (4,305,604) - - -
Beginning Increases Increases Decreases Ending
Less Accumulated depreciation
Buildings (1,061,216) 1,061,216
Furniture (11,726) 11,726
Machinery and equipment (43,094) 43,094
Total Accumulated depreciation (1,116,036) 1,116,036 - - -

Total Capital assets being depreciated, net 3,189,568 _ (3,189,568)

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 3,189,568 _ (3,189,568) § - 3 - 8

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, was charged to functions of the District as follows:

General government
Instruction $1,586,112
Support services - instructional 394,582
Support services -operational 191,639
Non-instructional services 28,295
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $2,200,628

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District has determined that user charges are not intended to fully
support the programs that had been reported as business-type activities, so programs have been absorbed
by the general fund and all assets transferred.

VII. Employee pension plans

Canadian Valley Technology Center, District No. 6 participates in the state-administered Teachers’
Retirement System of Oklahoma (the System), which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee
retirement system. Additionally, the District provides an employer-funded pension plan for eligible
employees offered an Early Retirement Incentive Plan.

Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma

Plan Description — The System provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The ability to establish and amend
benefit provisions is the responsibility of the state legislature. The System issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
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employees of the District. The System issues a publically available financial report that can be obtained
at http://www.ok.gov/trs/.

Benefits Provided — The System provides defined retirement benefits based on members’ final
compensation, age, and term of service. In addition, the retirement program provides for benefits upon
disability and to survivors upon the death of eligible members. Title 70 O.S. Sec. 17-105 defines all
retirement benefits. The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rests with the State
Legislature.

Contributions — In accordance with Oklahoma Statutes, System members are required to contribute 7.00%
of applicable compensation. For the year ended June 30, 2018, qualifying employee contributions were
reduced by a retirement credit of $82,271 provided by Enrolled House Bill 1873 and paid by the State of
Oklahoma as on-behalf payments. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District had a statutory
contribution rate of 9.5% plus 7.7% as a match for salaries funded by federal programs. The contribution
requirements of System members and the District are established and may be amended by the state
legislature. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District contributions to the System for were $1,521,827.

The State of Oklahoma, a non-employer contributing enmity, provides funds through 5% of the State’s
sales, use, corporate and individual income taxes collected. The System receives 1% of the cigarette taxes
collected by the State and 5% of net lottery proceeds collected by the State. The District’s estimated share
of these contributions based on their proportionate share for the measurement period was $1,022,555.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $22,470,710 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s

long-term share of the contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the District’s proportion was
0.33864845%, as compared to its proportion share of 0.31508982% measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $2,071,851. At June 30,

2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:
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Deferred Deferred

Outflow of Inflow of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 1,467,702
Changes of assumptions 1,614,294 1,403,579
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 319,824 -
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1,045,607 -
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,496,963 -

$ 4,476,688 $ 2,871,281

$1,496,963 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
2019 $ 26347
2020 869,700
2021 801,541
2022 (377,314)
2023 (245,266)
Thereafter (966,564)

$§ 108,444

Actuarial assumptions — The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Actuarial Cost Method — Entry Age Normal
Inflation — 2.5%
Future Ad Hoc Cost-of living increases - None
Salary Increases — Composed of 3.25 %wage inflation, including 2.50 percent price inflation, plus
a service-related component ranging from 0.00 percent to 8.00 percent based on years of service.
Investment Rate of Return — 7.5% ‘
Retirement Age — Experience-based table of rates based on age, service, and gender. Adopted by
the TRS Board in May, 2015, in conjunction with five year experience study for the period ending
June 30,2014
Mortality Rates after Retirement — Males: RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for males
with White Collar Adjustments. Generational mortality improvements in accordance with Scale
BB from the table’s base year of 2000. Females: GRS Southwest Region Teacher Mortality Table,

34



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2018

scaled to 105%. Generational mortality improvements in accordance with Scale BB from the
table’s base year of 2012.

Mortality Rates for Active Members — RP-2000 Employee Mortality tables, with male rates
multiplied by 60% and female rates multiplied by 50%.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expecting inflation.

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic expected real rates of return for each major
asset class as of June 30, 2017, are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Fixed Income 23.50% 6.60%
Domestic Equity 57.50% 6.80%
Private Equity 5.00% 7.90%
Real Estate 7.00% 5.50%
Limited Partnerships 7.00% 7.90%

100.00%

Discount rate —A single discount rate of 7.5% was used to measure the total pension liability as of June
30, 2017. This is the same rate as used in the prior year. This single discount rate was based solely on the
expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.50%. Based on the stated assumptions and the
projection of cash flows, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions were projected
to be available to finance all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate
_ The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-
point higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

Current
Discount
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
District’'s proportionate share
of the net pension liability $ 30,949,217 $ 22,470,710 $ 15,373,224

Pension plan fiduciary net position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued TRS financial report that can be obtained at http://www.ok.gov/trs/.
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VIII. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

In addition to the retirement plan described in Note VII, the District participates in the state-administered
Supplemental Health Insurance Program (OPEB Plan) within Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma
(the OPEB System), which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered
by the Teacher Retirement System (TRS).

Plan Description — The OPEB System provides pays a monthly health insurance premium supplement for
each retired member who is enrolled in the health insurance plan provided by the State and Education
Employees Group Health and Dental Insurance plan or in an insurance program provided by a
participating education employer who provides health insurance coverage to former employees, provided
the retired member had at least ten (10) years of Oklahoma service prior to retirement.

Benefits Provided — All retirees are eligible except for special retirees (as defined) and spouses and
beneficiaries as long as they have at least 10 years of service. Retirees who elect such coverage receive
the smaller of (i) a Medicare supplement benefit, if eligible, or (ii) an amount between $100 and $105 per
month, depending on service and final average compensation. Payments made on the retirees’ behalf to
the Employees Group Insurance Division of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services, if the
member continues health coverage under that Plan, or (ii) to the member’s former employer, if the member
retains health coverage under a plan maintained by the former employer.

Contributions — Employer and employee contributions are made based upon the TRS Plan provisions
contained in State Statute Title 70, as amended. However, the statutes do not specify or identify any
particular contribution source to pay the health insurance subsidy. The cost of the subsidy averages 0.15%
of normal cost, as determined by an actuarial valuation.

OPEB (Assets) Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources related to OPEB

At June 30, 2018, the District reported an asset of ($151,018) for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
asset. The net OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB asset used to calculate
the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of
the net OPEB asset was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of the contributions to the
OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially
determined. At June 30,2017, the District’s proportion was 0.33864845%, as compared to its proportion
share of 0.31508982% measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense (credit) of ($30,456) At June 30,

2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:
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VIII. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (continued)
Deferred Deferred

Outflow of  Inflow of
Resources  Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ -3 -
Changes of assumptions - 40,535
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments - 82,834

Changes in proportion and differences between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 24,864 -
$ 24,864 $ 123,369

$24,864 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net OPEB asset in the
measurement year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
2019 (28,215)
2020 (28,215)
2021 (28,215)
2022 (28,215)
2023 (28,215)
Thereafter (3,003)

$ (123,369)

See Note VII. Employee pension plans for Actuarial assumptions, measurement, discount rate, long-term
expected rate of return and target asset allocation

An assumption change was made to the OPEB Plan during the current valuation lowering the rate of
participation in the supplemental insurance benefit from 100% to 50%, based on historical data. The
benefits are only available to those retirees that participate and have at least 10 years of service credit at

retirement.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset to changes in the discount rate —
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset calculated using the
discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-point
higher (8.50%) than the current rate: :
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June 30, 2018
1% Decrease ~ Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)
District's
Proportionate share
of'the net OPEB
liability(asset) $ (6321) $ (151,018)  $  (274,731)

Due to the structure of the OPEB plan, healthcare cost trend rate sensitivity analysis is not meaningful.

OPEB plan fiduciary net position — Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued TRS financial report that can be obtained at http://www.ok.gov/trs/.

IX. Commitments and contingencies

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granter cannot be
determined at this time although the District expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Insurance Coverage

The District purchases commercial insurance policies covering property casualty loss, public liability,
school board member and administrator liability, and workers compensation.

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; or acts of God. The District purchases commercial insurance
to cover these risks, including general and auto liability, property damage, and public officials liability.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the commercial insurance coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years.

The School also participates in a risk pool for Workers' Compensation coverage in which there is a
transferor pooling of risks among the participants of that pool. The School reports the required contribution
to the pool, net of refunds, as insurance expense. The risk pool is the Oklahoma School Assurance group
(OSAQG), an organization formed for the purpose of providing workers' compensation coverage to
participating schools in the State of Oklahoma. In that capacity, OSAG is responsible for providing loss
control services and certain fiscal activities, including obtaining contract arrangements for the
underwriting, excess insurance agreements, claims processing, and legal defense for any and all claims
submitted to them during the plan year. As a member of OSAG, the District is required to pay fees set by
OSAG according to an established payment schedule. A portion of the fees paid by the District goes into
a loss fund for the District. The fee for the loss fund is calculated by projecting losses based on the schools
losses for the last five years. OSAG provides coverage in excess of the Loss Fund so the District's liability
for claim loss is limited to the balance of the loss fund. If the District does not use their loss fund in three
years, it is returned to them with no interest.
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The District is also a member of the Oklahoma Public Schools Unemployment Compensation Program.
In this program, the District is required to make a deposit based on past experience for potential
unemployment claims. The funds for each District are kept separate. The money contributed by each
District does not earn interest and is fully insured. If the District has claims in excess of the amount of
their account, they would be liable for the excess.

Encumbrances .

The District utilizes encumbrance accounting in its governmental funds. Encumbrances are recognized as
a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in which a purchase order is issued
and accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at year end are report as expenditures in the year

issued for budgetary purposes. Significant encumbrances included in the governmental fund balances as
committed are as follows:

General Fund 2,022,494
Building Fund 1,196,624
$3219.118_

The District has entered into several multi-year operating lease agreements for various items of equipment
which contain the escape clause required by Oklahoma Statutes. The details of the operating lease
commitments are noted as follows:

Standley Ross

Lessor Corporation Transportation Totals

Property 102 various copiers 6 School Buses

Date of Lease Various Various

Terms of Lease 5 years 3 years

Total Cost $389,365

Payment $6,489/Mo

Annual Commitment
2018-19 59,803 86,500 146,303
2019-20 54,678 29,000 83,678
2020-21 46,493 - 46,493
2021-22 44,051 - 44,051
2022-23 34,515 - 34,515

$ 355,040

X. Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

As of June 30, 2018, fund balances are composed of the following:
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Capital Debt
Building Insurance Projects Service
General Fund Fund Fund Fund

Nonspendable
Inventories $ 120,050 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Restricted
Buildings - 8,987,281 - - -
Capital Projects - - - - -
Debt Service - - - - 875,090
Committed
Assigned
Buildings - 46,709 - - -
Capital Projects - - - - -
Debt Service - - - - -
Next year's budget 7,641,441 - - - -
Cash Flow - - - - -
District Programs 2,022,494 - - - -
Unassigned 891,818 - - - -
$10,675,803 $9,033,990 $ - $ - $ 875,090

The District would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and
then assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend
unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.

XI Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences Between Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net
Position — Governmental Activities

Capital Assets used in governmental funds are not financial and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land $ 1,013,987
Construction in progress -
Total capital assets not depreciated $ 1,013,987
Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings $ 73,835816
Furniture and small equipment 183,139
Tools and large equipment 6,068,165
Vehicles 1,241,814
Total assets $ 81,328,934
Less Accumulated depreciation (15,433,265)
Total Capital assets being depreciated, net  § 65,895,669

Capital assets, net $ 66,909,656
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Explanation of certain differences between governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and
changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities.

Capital Outlay $ 805,310
Transfer from business type activities 3,189,567
Depreciation Expense (2,170,154)
$ 1,824,723
District pension contributions $ 1,521,827

Cost of benefits earned net of employee contribution (3,563,222)
$  (2,041,395)

Accrued Interest Change $  (263,222)
Payments on general obligation bonds 1,335,000

~ Payments on lease payables 2,174,018
Issuance of new lease (25,000,000)
Change in funds held by trustee 27,447,305

$ 5,693,101

XII  Tax Abatement

The State of Oklahoma has authorized by Oklahoma Statutes 62-850 the creation of tax increment
financing (TIF) districts. These districts are intended to provide incentives and exemptions from taxation
within certain areas to encourage investment, development and economic growth. The City of El Reno
created two districts, Original Town and Crimson Creek North. These TIF districts reduce the ad valorem
taxes remitted to the District over the term of the agreements.

Oklahoma Statues title 31 offers a homestead exemption of up to 1 acre property in an urban area or 160
acres in a rural area. These homestead exemptions reduce the ad valorem taxes remitted to the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, abated property taxes were $1,015,629.
XIII Prior Period Correction
The District has determined that certain transactions were recorded incorrectly in a prior year.

Governmental Activities: In the governmental activities statements, an internal review of property
records indicated corrections to fixed assets needed to be recorded.
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In addition, during the current year, the District adopted GASB Statement 74, Financial reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. The Statement’s objective is to improve the
usefulness of information for postemployment benefits other than pensions presented in the financial
statements.

As a result of the implementation of GASB Statement 74, and the correction, a beginning balance
restatement occurred as follows:

X1V

Previously
Presented Restatement 2017 Restated
Governmental Activities
Capital assets $65,371,681 $ (249,409) $65,122,272
Net OPEB Asset - 22,057 22,057
Net position (44,663,761) 227,352 (44,436,409)
New GASB Standards

The District implemented the following GASB Statements:

GASB Statement No.75, Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions establishes standards for
recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources and
expenses/expenditures. Furthermore, this statement details the recognition and disclosure
requirements for employers with payables to defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered
by trusts that meet the specified criteria and for employers whose employees are provided with
defined contribution OPEB.

GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements requires that a government that
receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the agreement. Furthermore, this Statement
No. 81 requires that a government recognize assets representing its beneficial interests in
irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the government
controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests. The Statement requires that a
government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period.
The provisions in this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016.
GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68
and No. 73, seeks to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to those
Statements. Specifically, Statement No. 82 addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of
payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions
and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for
financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy
employee (plan member) contribution requirements. The provisions in this statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016, except for where the selection of
assumptions in a circumstance in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date
other than the employer’s most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for
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the selection of assumptions are effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which
the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017

The following pronouncements will be effective in the future: Management has evaluated these
statements as having an impact on the District.

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations establishes criteria for recognition
of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for asset retirement obligations
(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the future retirement of a
tangible capital asset. The provisions of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities establishes general criteria for determining when a
governmental unit has a fiduciary role for managing certain types of assets. The focus of the criteria
generally is on (a) whether the government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and
(b) the beneficiaries with whom the fiduciary relationship exists. The provisions of this statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

GASBS Statement No. 87, Leases, which supersedes current guidance on leases and establishes
that leases are a financing arrangement for the right to use an underlying asset. The standard
requires the government to record a lease liability and capitalize and amortize the underlying asset
over the shorter of the asset life or the lease term. It provides an exception for short-term leases
(e.g., less than 12 months) and requires leases that transfer ownership of the underlying asset to be
accounted for as a financed purchase. Lease disclosure requirements are also amended. GASBS
No. 87 is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2017.
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) — General Fund (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES COLLECTED
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources
Total revenues collected

EXPENDITURES PAID
Instruction

Support services
Noninstruction Services

Other outlays
Total expenditures paid

Excess of revenues collected over
(under) expenditures paid before
adjustments to prior year encumbrances

Adjustments to prior year encumbrances

Excess of revenues collected
over (under) expenditures paid

FUND BALANCES, beginning

FUND BALANCES, ending

Adjustments to reconcile the ending statutory fund balance to the fund balance
reported on the governmental funds balance sheet:

Accounts receivable not recorded on statutory budget basis

Inventory expensed on statutory budget basis

Deferred revenue not recorded on statutory budget basis

Payables not recorded on statutory budget basis

Compensated absences not recorded on statutory budget basis

Encumbrances expensed on the statutory budget basis

Variance -
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
§ 17,721,464 18,999,527 $§ 20,747,450 $ 1,747,923
3,014,721 2,646,666 2,677,207 30,541
785,860 851,428 878,515 27,087
21,522,045 22,497,621 24,303,172 1,805,551
11,283,439 12,365,629 10,994,887 1,370,742
10,300,000 10,900,000 12,072,039 (1,172,039)
1,720,000 2,040,000 1,734,728 305,272
7,682,000 7,695,000 854,136 6,840,864
30,985,439 33,000,629 25,655,790 7,344,839
(9,463,394) (10,503,008) (1,352,618) 9,150,390
- - 1,081,101 1,081,101
(9,463,394) (10,503,008) (271,517) 10,231,491
9,463,394 10,503,008 9,418,473 -
$ - - $ 9,146,956 § 10,231,491
2,925,862
120,050
(2,157,639)
(1,067,909)
(314,011)
2,022,494
$ 10,675,803
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Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) — Building Fund (Unaudited)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variance -
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES COLLECTED
Local sources $ 7964276 $ 8,679,121 § 9,366,041 $ 686,920
State sources - - 1,210 1,210
Total revenues collected 7,964,276 8,679,121 9,367,251 688,130
EXPENDITURES PAID
Instruction 600,000 674,542 776,595 (102,053)
Support services 5,643,073 6,200,000 4,270,095 1,929,905
Noninstructional 50,000 50,000 16,207 33,793
Facilities acquisition and construction services 3,700,000 4,300,000 4,693,455 (393,455)
Other Outlay 6,500,000 6,500,000 0 6,500,000
Total expenditures paid 16,493,073 17,724,542 9,756,352 7,968,190
Excess of revenues collected over
(under) expenditures paid before
adjustments to prior year encumbrances (8,528,797) (9,045,421) (389,101) 8,656,320
Adjustments to prior year encumbrances - - - -
Excess of revenues collected
over (under) expenditures paid (8,528,797) (9,045,421) (389,101) 8,656,320
FUND BALANCES, beginning 8,528,797 9,045,421 8,561,754 -
FUND BALANCES, ending $ - $ - $ 8,172,653 § 8,656,320

Adjustments to reconcile the ending statutory fund balance to the fund balance
reported on the governmental funds balance sheet:

Accounts receivable not recorded on statutory budget basis 1,431,228
Deferred revenue not recorded on statutory budget basis (1,196,701)
Payables are not recorded on statutory budget basis (569,813)
Encumbrances expensed on statutory budget basis 1,196,623

S 003399
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Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) — Insurance Fund (Unaudited)

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

REVENUES COLLECTED
Local sources
State sources

Total revenues collected

EXPENDITURES PAID
Instruction
Support services
Noninstructional
Facilities acquisition and construction services
Other Outlay
Total expenditures paid

Excess of revenues collected over
(under) expenditures paid before
adjustments to prior year encumbrances

Adjustments to prior year encumbrances

Excess of revenues collected
over (under) expenditures paid

FUND BALANCES, beginning

FUND BALANCES, ending

Variance -
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
- $ - . -
4,418 11,373 1,012 10,361
- 4,418 13,445 (9,027)
- - 1,334 (1,334)
4,418 15,791 15,791 -
(4,418) (15,791) (15,791) -
- 11,373 11,373 -
(4,418) (4,418) (4,418) -
4418 4,418 4,418 -
- $ - - $ -

Adjustments to reconcile the ending statutory fund balance to the fund balance

reported on the governmental funds balance sheet:

Accounts receivable not recorded on statutory budget basis

Deferred revenue not recorded on statutory budget basis

Payables are not recorded on statutory budget basis

Encumbrances expensed on statutory budget basis
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Schedule of District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Teachers’ Retirement Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

2017 2016 2015 2014
District's portion of the net pension
liability (asset) 0.338648450% 0.315089820% 0.315089820% 0.301090050%
District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) 22,470,710 26,982,302 19,134,643 16,198,242
District's covered employee payroll 14,617,989 14,123,189 13,669,375 14,522,085
District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered employee payroll 153.72% 191.05% 139.98% 111.54%
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liabilty 69.92% 62.24% 70.31% 63.19%

Note that only years since implementation of GASB 68 are included.
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma
Schedule of District Contributions
Teachers’ Retirement Plan

Last 10 Fiscal Years

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

017
Contractually required contribution $ 1,388,709
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 1,388,709
Contribution deficiency (excess) -
District's covered payroll 14,617,989
Contributions as a percentage of Covered
employee Payroll 9.50%

016

$ 1,341,703

1,341,703

14,123,189

9.50%

2015

$ 1,365,303

1,365,303

13,669,375

9.50%

Note that only years since implementation of GASB 68 are included.
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$1,197,599

1,197,599

14,522,085

9.50%

2013

$1,120,222

1,120,222

13,867,104

9.50%



Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma
Schedule of District’s Proportionate Share of Net OPEB (Asset) Liability
Teachers’ OPEB Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

2017

District's portion of the net OPEB liability (asset) 0.338648450%
District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) (151,018)
District's covered employee payroll 15,540,004
District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) as a

percentage of its covered employee payroll 0.97%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liabilty

(asset) 110.40%

Notes to Schedule:

Only the current fiscal year is presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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Canadian County, Oklahoma

Schedule of District’s Contribution

Teachers’ OPEB Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
District's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of Covered employee Payroll

Notes to Schedule:

2017

22,057

22,057

15,540,004

0.142%

Only the current fiscal year is presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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Canadian Valley Technology Center School District No. 6

Canadian County, Oklahoma
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1: Budgeting and Budgetary Control

Oklahoma statutes require the District to prepare an annual budget. The various county excise boards
formally approve the annual budget for the general fund, building fund, sinking fund and gifts and
endowment fund. The District adopts its budget at the fund level.

Note 2: Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Under the budgetary basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they are received rather than
earned. Purchases of materials, outside services and capital outlays are recognized as expenditures when
the commitment to purchase is made (encumbered).

Note 3: Changes of Assumptions ,

The actuarial assumptions used in the 2015 valuation were based upon 2015 Actuarial Experience Study
Report dated May 13, 2015. The current actuarial assumptions were adopted by the TRS Board of Trustees
in May, 2015 and first utilized in June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation report. Among the changes since the
prior valuation are the treatment of the administrative expenses, payroll growth rate, healthy post-
retirement mortality rates, termination rates and rates for unreduced retirement.

An assumption change was made to the OPEB Plan during the current valuation lowering the rate of
participation in the supplemental insurance benefit from 100% to 50%, based on historical data. The
benefits are only available to those retirees that participate and have at least 10 years of service credit at
retirement.
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REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS



KERRY JOHN PATTEN, C.PA.

2101 N. Willow Ave.

Broken Arrow, OK 74012
Phone Number (918) 250-8838
FAX Number (918) 250-9853

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Board of Education
Canadian Valley Technology Center No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma

| have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Canadian Valley Technology Center No. 6,
Canadian County, Oklahoma (District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's financial statements, and have issued my report
thereon dated February 8, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, | considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a .
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance. )

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during my audit | did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that |
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, | performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
my audit, and accordingly, | do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

This report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Kerry John Patten, C.P.A.
Broken Afrow, OK
February 8, 2019
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KERRY JOHN PATTEN, C.PA.

2101 N. Willow Ave.

Broken Arrow, OK 74012
Phone Number (918) 250-8838
FAX Number (918) 250-9853

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Honorable Board of Education
Canadian Valley Technology Center No. 6
Canadian County, Oklahoma

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

| have audited the compliance of Canadian Valley Technology Center No. 6, Canadian County, Oklahoma

(District's) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and

Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’'s major

federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The District's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal programs based on
my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. | conducted my audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; and the audit requirements .
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require
that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major program
occurred. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compliance.

_Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In my opinion, Canadian Valley Technology Center, No. NO. 6, Canadian County, Oklahoma, complied, in all

material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Canadian Valley Technology Center No. 6, Canadian County, Oklahoma (District), is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing my audit of compliance, | considered the District's
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program, on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on, a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. | did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that | considered to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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CANADIAN VALLEY TECHNOLOGY CENTER NO. 6
CANADIAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

10.

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the government-wide financial statements of
Canadian Valley Technology Center.

There were no audit findings reported of deficiencies in internal control, which the auditor considers to be
“significant deficiencies” as defined in A.1.C.P.A. standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Canadian Valley Technology
Center which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were
disclosed during the audit.

There were no audit findings reported of deficiencies in internal control over major programs, which the
auditor considers to be “significant deficiencies” as defined by A..C.P.A.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Canadian Valley
Technology Center expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Uniform Guidance
relative to major federal award programs for Canadian Valley Technology Center.

The programs tested as major programs included: Title IV, Financial Aid Cluster; Pell (84.063), and Carl
Perkins (84.048). : ’ ‘ ' : ’

A threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.

Canadian Valley Technology Center was determined to be a low-risk auditee for purposes of defermining
overall percentage of Federal compliance testing.

FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

1.

No matters were reported.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

1.

No matters were reported.
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CANADIAN VALLEY TECHNOLOGY CENTER NO. 6
CANADIAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
SUMMARY OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The summary of prior audit findings is required to report the status of all audit findings reported in the prior audit's
schedule of findings and questioned costs relative to federal awards.

The center had no prior year audit findings relative to federal award programs.

59



CANADIAN VALLEY TECHNOLOGY CENTER NO. 6
CANADIAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF COMMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Based on my tests of accounting records and related procedures, | found nothing to indicate that Canadian Valley

Technology Center had not complied with significant compliance rules and regulations of the Oklahoma State
Department of Career and Technology Education.

Previous Year's Audit Comments

There were no items in the school’s 2016-17 audit report which required correction.

| would like to express my appreciation for the courtesies and cooperation extended to us by District administrators
and employees during the course of this audit.
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CANADIAN VALLEY TECHNOLOGY CENTER NO. 6
CANADIAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTANT’S PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE AFFIDAVIT
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

State of Oklahoma)
County of Tulsa)

The undersigned auditing firm of lawful age, being first duly sworn on oath, says that said firm had in full force and
effect Accountant’s Professional Liability Insurance in accordance with the “Oklahoma Public School Audit Law” at
the time of audit contract and during the entire audit engagement with Canadian Valley Technology Center for the
audit year 2017-2018.

Kerry John Patten, C.P.A.

AUDITING FIRM

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this

L o Pohtnn . 1019

AMBER M BAILEY
Notary Public

State of Oklahoma

Commission # 15006496

§ My Commission Expires Jul 17, 2019

Sawhin )P o

" NOTARYPUBLIG

My commission expires on:

"HIA day of U(/th/jf | Z()VZ

[
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